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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Trustees
Henry Johnson Charter School

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Henry Johnson Charter School (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2015 and
2014, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating  the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Henry Johnson Charter School as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the changes
in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole.  The schedules of functional expenses on pages 13-14 is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements.  The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards on page 19, as required by Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, is presented
for purposes of additional analysis and is also not a required part of the financial statements.  Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated,
in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our reports dated October
27, 2015, on our consideration of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

CUSACK & COMPANY, CPA’S LLC

Latham, New York
October 27, 2015



HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

ASSETS

2015 2014
Current Assets

Cash
Grants and Contracts Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Other Assets

Property and Equipment - Net
Loan Acquisition Costs - Net
Cash - Designated

Total Other Assets

Total Assets

$ 1,958,719
144,515

65,615

2,168,849

7,534,483
106,989

75,019

7,716,491

$ 9,885,340

$ 1,744,797
353,935

90,317

2,189,049

168,311
-

1,089,619

1,257,930

$ 3,446,979

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Accrued Payroll and Benefits
Compensated Absences

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Unrestricted
Undesignated
Designated

Total Unrestricted

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

$ 82,612
86,300

489,056
39,522

697,490

5,898,007

6,595,497

3,214,824
75,019

3,289,843

$ 9,885,340

$ -
28,613

472,865
18,881

520,359

-

520,359

1,837,001
1,089,619

2,926,620

$ 3,446,979

See accompanying notes and independent auditor’s report. 3



HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

2015 2014
Revenue

Public School District
Resident Student Enrollment
Students with Disabilities

Grants and Contracts
Federal Grants
Food Service/Children Nutrition Program
State and Local Grants

Total Revenue

Expenses

Program Services
Regular Education
Special Education
Other Programs

Total Program Services

Management and General

Total Operating Expenses

Surplus from School Operations

Other Revenue/Expenses

Fundraising
E-Rate Income
Interest Income
Miscellaneous Income
In-Kind Donations
Loss on Asset Disposition

Total Other Revenue/Expenses

Increase in Net Assets before Extraordinary Item

Extraordinary Item

Increase in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

$ 5,432,751
-

192,623
321,491

32,256

5,979,121

3,618,831
445,339
460,435

4,524,605

1,095,572

5,620,177

358,944

3,061
18,304

147
4,083

25,295
(46,611)

4,279

-

-

363,223

2,926,620

$ 3,289,843

$ 5,275,382
10,122

228,034
311,012

-

5,824,550

3,658,789
408,317
432,213

4,499,319

803,331

5,302,650

521,900

-
55

3,748
699

11,569
15,019

31,090

552,990

(257,211)

295,779

2,630,841

$ 2,926,620

See accompanying notes and independent auditor’s report. 4



HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014
Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities:

Increase in Net Assets

Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets
    to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Amortization
Depreciation
Bad Debt Expense
Extraordinary Item - Loss on Fair Value Adjustment
Loss on Asset Disposition

Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities

(Increase) Decrease in Assets
Grants and Contracts Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Accrued Payroll and Benefits
Compensated Absences

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows Used In Financing Activities

Repayments of Long-Term Debt
Payment for Debt Acquisition Costs

Net Cash Used In Financing Activities

Cash Flows Used In Investing Activities
Purchase of Property and Equipment

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash, Beginning of Year

Cash, End of Year

Non-Cash Investing/Financing - Building Acquisition
   with Debt Proceeds

$ 363,223

1,911
145,935

1,152
-

46,611

208,268
24,702

57,687
16,191
20,641

886,321

(19,381)
(108,900)

(128,281)

(1,558,718)

(800,678)

2,834,416

$ 2,033,738

$ 6,000,000

$ 295,779

-
53,438
3,500

257,211
-

(84,445)
10,916

(118,416)
(18,367)

5,309

404,925

-
-

-

(92,999)

311,926

2,522,490

$ 2,834,416

$ -

See accompanying notes and independent auditor’s report. 5



HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

1. ORGANIZATION AND PURPOSE

Organization

Henry Johnson Charter School (the “School”) is a New York not-for-profit organization that
works to ensure all students reach the highest levels of scholastic achievement in an
environment that instills character, virtue, and “habits of mind” that ensure success both
within and outside the classroom: diligence, courage, respect, self-reliance, duty and
responsibility.

A provisional charter, valid for five years, was granted to the School by the University of the
State of New York pursuant to Article 56 of the Education Law of the State of New York. 
The School began providing educational services in the fall of 2007 for K-1 grades.  The
provisional charter allowed for an additional grade to be added in each subsequent year until
the School reaches grades K-4.  A charter renewal was granted in 2011 extending the
school’s operations for an additional three years ending June 30, 2015.  As of June 30, 2015,
the School had an enrollment of 386 students in K-4th grades.  The authorizer has approved
an additional five year renewal until June 30, 2020.

The School is governed by a Board of Trustees in accordance with the School’s by-laws. 
The School partners with Albany Charter School Network which provides academic and
operational assistance to area charter schools.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

Financial Statement Presentation

The following summarizes the significant accounting policies consistently applied in the
preparation of the School’s financial statements, with references to the Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) where applicable.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with ASC
“Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations” utilizing the accrual basis of
accounting.  This basis of accounting conforms to accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Support and Revenue

Grants and pledges received are measured at their fair values and reported as an increase in
net assets.  The School reports grants and pledges as restricted support when a portion of
their value is assigned to a long-term future use; long-term meaning in excess of one year for
the purpose of these financial statements.

See independent auditor’s report. 6



HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

Support and Revenue (Continued)

The School reports gifts of goods and equipment as unrestricted support unless explicit donor
stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used.  Gifts of long-lived assets with
explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets
that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support.  Absent
explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, the
School reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long-lived
assets are placed in service.

Revenue Recognition

A substantial portion of the School’s revenue and related receivables is derived from its
billing of Albany City School District.  State law requires the District to reimburse the
School on a per capita basis.  These revenues are recognized ratably over the related school
year during which they are earned.

Revenue from other governmental resources generally represents entitlements grants and is
recognized as earned as allowable expenditures are incurred.  Costs are subject to audit and
changes, if any, are recognized in the year known.

Donated Services 

A number of unpaid volunteers have made contributions of their time.  The value of this
contributed time is not reflected in these financial statements since it is not susceptible to
objective measurement or valuation and it does not meet the reporting requirements of the
accounting standards.

Grants, Contracts and Accounts Receivable

Receivables are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful
receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts on a monthly basis.  Management
determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by identifying troubled accounts and by using
historical experience applied to an aging of accounts.  Receivables are written off when
deemed uncollectible.  Recoveries of accounts previously written off are recorded when
received.  A receivable is considered past due if any portion of the receivable balance is
outstanding for more than 90 days.  Management considers all receivables to be fully
collectible.  Accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts is required.

See independent auditor’s report. 7



HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

Property, Equipment and Depreciation

Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $500 are capitalized and recorded at
cost. Improvements and replacements of property and equipment are capitalized. 
Maintenance and repairs not improving or extending the lives of property and equipment is
charged to expense as incurred.  When assets are sold or retired, their cost and related
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is reported in
the statement of activities.  Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of each
class of depreciable assets (ranging from 3 to 39 years) and is computed using the straight-
line method.

Conditional and Unconditional Promises to Give

At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the School had not received any conditional or unconditional
promises to give. 

Functional Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on
a functional basis.  Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs
benefitted.  Salaries are allocated based on estimates of total time spent, while other expenses
are allocated based on estimates of the resources used.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Actual results could differ
from these estimates.

Income Taxes

The School is exempt from federal income tax under §501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code, and the School is exempt from state income tax.  The School has been classified as a
publicly-supported organization that is not a private foundation under §509(a) of the Code.

Under ASC Section 740, the tax-exempt status of a tax-exempt entity is an uncertain tax
position, since events could potentially occur that jeopardize tax exempt status.  Management
is not aware of any events that could jeopardize tax exempt status.

See independent auditor’s report. 8



HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

Income Taxes (Continued)

Forms 990 filed by the School are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service
up to three years from the extended due date of each return.  Forms 990 filed by the School
for the fiscal years prior to June 30, 2012 are no longer subject to examination.  There are
currently no audits for these tax periods in progress.

Fair Value 

For assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the ASC required
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements and establishes a three-level hierarchy
for fair value measurements based on the observable inputs to the valuation of an asset or
liability at the measurement date.  Fair value is defined as the price that the School would
receive upon selling an asset or be paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants.  The guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes
observable and unobservable inputs used to measure fair value into three broad levels which
are described below:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement
date for identical assets or liabilities.  The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to
Level 1 inputs.

Level 2: Observable prices that are based on inputs not quoted on active markets, but
corroborated by market data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs are used when little or no market data is available.  The fair
value hierarchy gives the lowest priority to Level 3 inputs.

Designated Cash and Net Assets

Designated cash and net assets represents funds set aside by Board action for future school
expansion.

Advertising Costs

The School expenses advertising costs as they are incurred.  Advertising costs for the years
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 were $7,291 and $9,418, respectively.

See independent auditor’s report. 9



HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

Subsequent Events

The School has adopted ASC 855, Subsequent Events, which establishes general standards
of accounting for, and disclosures of, events that occur after the due date of the financial
statements but before the financial statements are issued or are available to be issued.  In the
preparation of these financial statements and notes thereto, management has evaluated
subsequent events or transactions as to any potential material impact on operations or
financial position occurring through October 27, 2015, the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.  No such events or transactions were identified.

3. GRANTS, CONTRACTS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

At June 30, 2015 and 2014, grants, contracts and accounts receivable were comprised of the
following funding sources:

2015 2014

School District Tuition
U.S. Department of Agriculture

$ 74,251
70,264

$ 144,515

$ 319,113
34,822

$ 353,935

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET

Property and equipment - net are reflected at historical cost, net of related depreciation, and
are comprised of the following at June 30, 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014

Buildings
Land
Land Improvements
Equipment
Furniture and Fixtures
Leasehold Improvements
Total at Cost
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

$ 6,983,442
483,000

2,234
281,754
187,835

-
7,938,265
(403,782)

$ 7,534,483

$ -
28,000
2,234

235,484
184,355
41,903

491,976
(323,665)

$ 168,311

Depreciation expense was $145,935 and $53,438 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and
2014, respectively.

See independent auditor’s report. 10



HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

5. LOAN ACQUISITION COSTS

Loan acquisition costs on the financing of certain real property of the School and are being
amortized over 28.5 years.  Capitalized costs totaled $108,900 with accumulated
amortization of $1,911 as of June 30, 2015.  Amortization expense was $1,911 for the year
ended June 30, 2015.

6. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt is comprised of the following at June 30, 2015:

Mortgage loan payable to Local Initiatives Support Corporation, in
monthly payments of $36,659, including interest at 6%, maturing in
September, 2043, collateralized by building.
Less: current portion

$ 5,980,619
(82,612)

$ 5,898,007

Estimated debt maturities at June 30 over the next five (5) years are as follows:

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter

$ 82,612
88,697
94,167
99,975

105,216
5,509,952

$ 5,980,619

7. RENTAL OF FACILITY

In February 2015 the School purchased the buildings that it previously leased from the
Brighter Choice Foundation.  Net occupancy costs for the years ended June 30, 2015 and
2014 was $366,667 and $560,000, respectively.

8. RETIREMENT PLAN

The School has adopted a SIMPLE IRA retirement plan that all employees are eligible to
participate in.  The School contributes a matching contribution of up to 3% of the employee’s
gross compensation per payroll to any employee who contributes to the plan.  The School’s
retirement plan expense for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 was $44,892 and
$44,150, respectively.

9. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School receives a substantial portion of its funding from school districts where students
reside.  Two school districts comprised approximately 82% and 83% of total revenue and
support for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.  No other funding source
accounted for more than 10% of total revenue and support.

See independent auditor’s report. 11



HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

9. CONCENTRATION OF RISK (CONTINUED)

The School does occasionally maintain deposits in excess of federal insured limits.  ASC
850-10 identifies this as a possible concentration of credit risk requiring disclosure,
regardless of the degree of risk.  The risk is managed by maintaining all deposits in high
quality financial institutions.

The School is subject to audits and reviews of reimbursable costs by various governmental
agencies.  The outcome of the audits and reviews may have the effect of retroactively
increasing or decreasing revenue from various sources.  These charges, if any, will be
recognized in accordance with the rules and guidelines established by the various funding
sources.

See independent auditor’s report. 12
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HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL 

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Supporting
Program Services Services

Regular Special Other Management
Education Education Education Total and General Total

Administrative Personnel
Instructional Personnel
Non-Instructional Personnel
Total Salaries

Fringe Benefits and Payroll Taxes
Retirement
Legal Service
Accounting and Audit Services
Other Purchased, Professional and
   Consulting Services
Building and Land Lease
Repairs and Maintenance
Insurance
Utilities
Supplies and Materials
Equipment and Furnishings
Staff Development
Marketing and Recruitment
Technology
Food Service
Student Services
Office Expense
Depreciation and Other
Interest Expense

Total Expenses

$ 139,351
1,939,517

-
2,078,868

492,703
32,568

3,111
20,527

112,778
266,009
140,327

27,750
50,761
43,870

1,823
26,204

5,290
21,891
-

129,582
27,671

137,098
-

$ 3,618,831

$ -
229,237

-
229,237

54,330
3,591

343
2,264

58,726
29,333
15,474

3,060
5,597
4,838

201
2,889

583
2,414
-

14,289
3,052

15,118
-

$ 445,339

$ -
-

113,050
113,050

-
-
-
-

-
20,133
10,621

2,100
3,842

-
-
-
-
-

159,024
149,572

2,093
-
-

$ 460,435

$ 139,351
2,168,754

113,050
2,421,155

547,033
36,159

3,454
22,791

171,504
315,475
166,422

32,910
60,200
48,708

2,024
29,093

5,873
24,305

159,024
293,443

32,816
152,216

-

$ 4,524,605

$ 557,405
-

42,163
599,568

132,108
8,733

834
5,504

41,418
51,192
27,005

5,340
9,769

69,654
489

-
1,418
5,869
-
-
5,326

36,759
94,586

$1,095,572

$ 696,756
2,168,754

155,213
3,020,723

679,141
44,892

4,288
28,295

212,922
366,667
193,427

38,250
69,969

118,362
2,513

29,093
7,291

30,174
159,024
293,443

38,142
188,975

94,586

$ 5,620,177

See independent auditor’s report. 13



HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL 

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Supporting
Program Services Services

Regular Special Other Management
Education Education Education Total and General Total

Administrative Personnel
Instructional Personnel
Non-Instructional Personnel
Total Salaries

Fringe Benefits and Payroll Taxes
Retirement
Legal Service
Accounting and Audit Services
Other Purchased, Professional and
   Consulting Services
Building and Land Lease
Repairs and Maintenance
Insurance
Utilities
Supplies and Materials
Equipment and Furnishings
Staff Development
Marketing and Recruitment
Technology
Food Service
Student Services
Office Expense
Depreciation and Other

Total Expenses

$ 113,712
1,958,352

-
2,072,064

456,065
33,492
10,555
20,756

133,252
424,818
138,204

26,720
53,956
61,820

1,976
16,839

7,145
11,568
-

115,520
26,101
47,938

$ 3,658,789

$ -
204,505

-
204,505

45,012
3,306
1,042
2,049

60,361
41,928
13,640

2,638
5,325
6,101

195
1,662

705
1,142
-

11,401
2,575
4,730

$ 408,317

$ -
-

112,975
112,975

-
-
-
-

-
28,902

9,402
1,817
3,671

-
-
-
-
-

143,516
130,154

1,776
-

$ 432,213

$ 113,712
2,162,857

112,975
2,389,544

501,077
36,798
11,597
22,805

193,613
495,648
161,246

31,175
62,952
67,921

2,171
18,501

7,850
12,710

143,516
257,075

30,452
52,668

$ 4,499,319

$ 454,849
-

41,983
496,832

100,113
7,352
2,317
4,556

38,683
64,352
20,935

4,048
8,173

36,951
434

-
1,568
2,539
-
-
3,954

10,524

$ 803,331

$ 568,561
2,162,857

154,958
2,886,376

601,190
44,150
13,914
27,361

232,296
560,000
182,181

35,223
71,125

104,872
2,605

18,501
9,418

15,249
143,516
257,075

34,406
63,192

$ 5,302,650

See independent auditor’s report. 14
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CUSACK & COMPANY
Certified Public Accountants LLC

7 AIRPORT PARK BOULEVARD

LATHAM, NEW YORK 12110
(518) 786-3550

FAX (518) 786-1538
E-MAIL ADDRESS: CPAS@CUSACKCPA.COM

WWW.CUSACKCPA.COM

MEMBERS OF: MEMBERS OF:
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

 FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees
Henry Johnson Charter School

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Henry Johnson Charter
School (the “School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2015, and the
related statements of activities and cash flows as of and for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 27, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the School’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.
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Compliance and  Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results
of our tests identified certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs that we consider significant deficiencies.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

 

CUSACK & COMPANY, CPA’S LLC
Latham, New York
October 27, 2015
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CUSACK & COMPANY
Certified Public Accountants LLC
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WWW.CUSACKCPA.COM

MEMBERS OF: MEMBERS OF:
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR

EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB  CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Trustees
Henry Johnson Charter School

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Henry Johnson Charter School’s (the “School”) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the School’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.  The
School’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the School’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments
and Non-Profit Organizations.  Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the School’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on the School’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the School complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2015.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the School’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
School’s internal control over compliance.
  
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  The results of our tests identified certain
deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that
we consider significant deficiencies.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

CUSACK & COMPANY, CPA’S LLC

Latham, New York
October 27, 2015
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HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Federal Pass-Through
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Entity/Project Federal
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures

Passed Through New York State Education Department:
U.S. Department of Education
ESEA Title I (FY14)
ESEA Title I (FY15)
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants (FY 14)
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants (FY 15)

Total U.S. Department of Education Passed 
   Through New York State Education Department

U.S. Department of Agriculture
School Breakfast Program
School Lunch Program

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture Passed Through
   New York State Education Department

Total Federal Assistance

84.010
84.010
84.367
84.367

10.553
10.555

0021-14-4369
0021-13-4369
0147-14-4369
0147-14-4369

-
-

$ 15,837
168,968

5,998
1,820

192,623

86,856
234,635

321,491

$ 514,114

See accompany notes and independent auditor’s report. 19



HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

JUNE 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards was prepared on the accrual basis
of accounting.  Grant awards are recorded as revenue when the criteria for earning the revenue is
met, generally when the expenditure of grant funds is made.  Grant expenditures are recorded when
the liability is incurred.

The amounts reported as federal expenditures on the schedule represent expenditures of federal
funds as obtained from the appropriate federal financial reports for the applicable programs and
periods.  The non-federal share of expenditures, if any, is excluded from the schedule.

2. SCOPE OF AUDIT PURSUANT TO OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Henry Johnson Charter School is an independent non-profit corporation.  All federal grant
operations of the School are included in the scope of the single audit.

See independent auditor’s report. 20



HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SECTION I — SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

• “Going Concern” explanatory paragraph included in audit report?

C Significant deficiency disclosed?

C Significant deficiency(ies) reported as a material weakness?

• Material noncompliance disclosed?

Federal Awards

Internal Control over major programs:

C Significant deficiency disclosed for any major programs?

C Significant deficiency(ies) reported for any major programs as a
material weakness?

C Any known questioned costs reported?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs:
  
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with section 510(a) of Circular A-133?

 Yes

     X Yes

      Yes

Yes

     X Yes

      Yes

      Yes

     X Yes

  Unmodified

    X No

    No

    X None reported

    X No

        No

    X  None reported

    X  No

  Unmodified

        No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s)
10.553/10.555

Name of Federal Program or Clusters
Child Nutrition Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?         Yes

$   300,000 

    X   No

SECTION II — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

N/A

SECTION III — FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

See pages 22-23 for federal award findings.

SECTION IV — RESOLUTION OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

See independent auditor’s report. 21



N/A

See independent auditor’s report. 22



HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL
FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

JUNE 30, 2015

For the year ended June 30, 2015, we selected the Child Nutrition Cluster (CFDA Numbers 10.553 and
10.555) as a major program for Henry Johnson Charter School’s (the School) Single Audit. Our test
work involved the inspection of 71 applications (Application for Free and Reduced Price School
Meals/Milk) and of those applications, (68) were randomly selected from either the application folders
or the “Meal Plan List” and (3) were selected as part of the internal “Verification” process, required of
the School as part of the program. The current year findings below, individually and in aggregate, are
deemed to be significant deficiencies less than material but warrant the attention of those charged with
governance.

Findings and Questioned Costs

Findings 2015-01: Auditor Preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of Auditing Standards “Communicating Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an
Audit” issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants requires the reporting of a
significant deficiency if the School does not employ an individual with the necessary qualifications to
prepare a complete set of financial statements and related footnotes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.  The School does not employ such a person.  Governance and
management have been advised of this previously and have concluded that the cost to rectify this
comment would exceed the benefit.

Finding 2015-02: Incorrect Calculation of Student Eligibility

Requirement: The School is required to review all applications submitted and utilize the income
provided on the application in conjunction with the Income Eligibility Guidelines established by the
USDA to determine whether the student should receive benefits under a Free/Reduced/Paid status and
therefore determine whether the School should receive the related Free/Reduced/Paid federal funding
for that student. 

Description of Condition: We tested (71) applications for compliance in accordance with USDA Income
Eligibility Guidelines. Of the applications reviewed for accuracy, (1) application was improperly marked
with a “Paid” status and therefore the student was denied benefits; based on the income provided the
student should have received benefits at a “Reduced” price. In turn, the School did not receive the related
“Reduced” price federal funding for that student.

Cause of Condition: Insufficient training of the staff in charge of the application review process as well
as lack of secondary review over all applications resulted in this deficiency. 

Effect of Condition and Questioned Costs: The effect of this deficiency is two-fold. First, the student was
required to pay the full price for all meals because they were denied benefits and considered a “Paid”
status when they should have received benefits at a “Reduced” price.  Additionally, the School should
have received the related increased federal funding at a “Reduced” price. We reviewed the deficiency
and extrapolated the error over all “Paid” statuses and determined that the finding resulted in a difference
that was neither material to the financial statements or to the single audit as it did not exceed the $10,000
threshold for questioned costs. 

See independent auditor’s report. 23



HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL
FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2015

Recommendation: We recommend that the School employ procedures to ensure that all applicable staff
are properly trained in regards to the application review process and utilizing the USDA Income
Eligibility Guidelines to determine the student status as Free/Reduced/Paid. Additionally, we
recommend that the School employ a secondary review over each application to ensure that both the
students and the School are receiving the correct benefit.  

Management’s Response: Prior to the auditor’s notification, the School reassigned job duties and
thoroughly trained the new staff member now assigned to serve in that role.  That said, the School agrees
with auditor’s recommendations and will implement a secondary review of all applications beyond the
requirement and will designate a secondary oversight officer in management who will be properly
trained to conduct checks in the absence of the primary-designated staff member.

Finding 2015-03: Insufficient follow-up relating to the “Verification” process

Requirement: The School must select a representative sample of applications for Free/Reduced Meals
and contact selected applicants for verification of income. If the proof of income provided requires a
change in the student’s status (free/reduced/paid), the applicant must be notified and the change in status
should be reflected in the School’s software system.

Description of Condition: The sample size selected by the School was determined to be (3) applications.
The proof of income provided for (1) of the (3) applications selected for verification testwork determined
that the income exceeded the allowable threshold to receive “Reduced” price benefits. The student
should have been denied benefits and the status should have been changed to “Paid”. For the sample
items, the status was not appropriately updated in the system and the student continued to receive
benefits as “Reduced” when the student should have been denied benefits.

Cause of Condition: Insufficient follow-up action taken by the staff member in charge of the
“Verification” process resulted in this finding. Additionally, insufficient review over the “Verification”
process by a senior staff member contributed to the finding.

Effect of Condition and Questioned Costs: Applicants whose income exceeds allowable amounts as
determined by USDA Income Eligibility Guidelines are not eligible to receive “Reduced” price meals,
and therefore the School is not permitted to receive federal funding for that student at the ‘Reduced” rate.
In order to determine the monetary effect of the finding, we calculated the rate difference between
“Reduced” and “Paid” meal prices and determined that the finding resulted in a difference that was
neither material to the financial statements or to the single audit as it did not exceed the $10,000
threshold for questioned costs. 

Recommendation: We recommend the School employ procedures to ensure all staff is properly trained
in regards to the “Verification” process as required by the Child Nutrition Program. Additionally, we
recommend the School employ a secondary review over the “Verification” process to ensure any
necessary changes are made in a timely manner. 

Management’s Response:  Prior to the auditor’s notification, the School reassigned job duties and
thoroughly trained the new staff member now assigned to serve in that role.  That said, the School agrees
with auditor’s recommendations and will implement a secondary review of all aspects of the verification
process and will designate a secondary oversight officer in management who will be properly trained
to conduct checks in the absence of the primary-designated staff member.

See independent auditor’s report. 24
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Form 990 (2014) Page 3

Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules
Yes No

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If ’Yes,’ complete1
Schedule A  1

Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)?2 2
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Part I 6
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environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Part II 7

Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If ’Yes,’8
complete Schedule D, Part III 8

Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability; serve as a custodian9
for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation
services? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Part IV 9

Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments,10
permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Part V 10

If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is ’Yes’, then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX,11
or X as applicable.

Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings and equipment in Part X, line 10? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedulea
D, Part VI 11a

Did the organization report an amount for investments ' other securities in Part X, line 12 that is 5% or more of its totalb
assets reported in Part X, line 16? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Part VII 11b

Did the organization report an amount for investments ' program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more of its totalc
assets reported in Part X, line 16? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Part VIII 11c

Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets reportedd
in Part X, line 16? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Part IX 11d

Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Part Xe 11e

Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addressesf
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Part X 11 f

Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If ’Yes,’ complete12a
Schedule D, Parts XI, and XII 12a

Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If ’Yes,’ andb
if the organization answered ’No’ to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional 12b

Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule E13 13

Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?14a 14a

Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising,b
business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued
at $100,000 or more? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV 14b

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any 15
foreign organization? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV 15

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to16
or for foreign individuals? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV 16

Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,17
column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule G, Part I (see instructions) 17

Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII,18
lines 1c and 8a? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule G, Part II 18

Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? If ’Yes,’19
complete Schedule G, Part III 19

Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule H20 a 20

If ’Yes’ to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return?  b 20b
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Form 990 (2014) Page 4

Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules  (continued)
Yes No

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or21
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule I, Parts I and II  21

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on Part IX, 22
column (A), line 2? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule I, Parts I and III 22

Did the organization answer ’Yes’ to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization’s current23
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? If ’Yes,’ complete
Schedule J 23

Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of24a
the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? If ’Yes,’ answer lines 24b through 24d and
complete Schedule K. If ’No, ’go to line 25a 24a

Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception?b 24b

Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defeasec
any tax-exempt bonds? 24c

Did the organization act as an ’on behalf of’ issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year?d 24d

Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit 25a
25atransaction with a disqualified person during the year? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule L, Part I

Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, andb
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If ’Yes,’ complete
Schedule L, Part I 25b

Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any current or26
former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons?
If ’Yes’, complete Schedule L, Part II 26

Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial27
contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled entity or family member

27of any of these persons? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule L, Part III

Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV28
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule L, Part IVa 28a

A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If ’Yes,’ completeb
Schedule L, Part IV 28b

An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was anc
officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule L, Part IV 28c
Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule M29 29

Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation30
contributions? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule M 30
Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule N, Part I31 31

Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If ’Yes,’ complete32
Schedule N, Part II 32

Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations sections33
301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule R, Part I 33

Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule R, Part II, III, or IV, 34
and Part V, line 1 34
Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)?35a 35a

If ’Yes’ to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled b
entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 35b

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related36
36organization? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2

Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization and that is37
treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule R, Part VI 37

Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19?38
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O 38
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Form 990 (2014) Page 5

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V  

Yes No

Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable1 a 1 a

Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicableb 1 b

Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gamingc
(gambling) winnings to prize winners? 1 c

Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax State-2 a
ments, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return  2 a

If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? b 2 b

Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions)

Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year?3 a 3 a

If ’Yes’ has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If ’No’ to line 3b, provide an explanation in Schedule Ob 3 b

At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a4 a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 4 a

If ’Yes,’ enter the name of the foreign country: Gb

See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts. (FBAR)

Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year?5 a 5 a

Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction?b 5 b

If ’Yes,’ to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T?c 5 c

Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization6 a
solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? 6 a

If ’Yes,’ did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts wereb
not tax deductible? 6 b

7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).

Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods anda
services provided to the payor? 7 a

If ’Yes,’ did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided?b 7 b

Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required to filec
Form 8282? 7 c

If ’Yes,’ indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the yeard 7 d

Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? 7 ee

Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract?  f 7 f

If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899g
as required? 7 g

If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file ah
Form 1098-C? 7 h

8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.  Did a donor advised fund maintained by the sponsoring 

organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? 8

9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.

Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966?a 9 a

Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?b 9 b

Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:10

Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12a 10a

Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities b 10b
Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:11

Gross income from members or shareholdersa 11a

Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sourcesb
against amounts due or received from them.) 11b
Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041?12a 12a

If ’Yes,’ enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year  b 12b

13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? 13aa

Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.

Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states inb
which the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans 13b

Enter the amount of reserves on hand  c 13c

Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year?14a 14a

If ’Yes,’ has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If ’No,’ provide an explanation in Schedule Ob 14b
TEEA0105    05/28/14 Form 990 (2014)BAA
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Form 990 (2014) Page 6

Part VI Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each ’Yes’ response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for 
a ’No’ response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in  
Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI

Section A. Governing Body and Management
Yes No

Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year  1 a 1 a
If there are material differences in voting rights among members
of the governing body, or if the governing body delegated broad
authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain in Schedule O.

Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independentb 1 b
Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other2
officer, director, trustee, or key employee? 2

Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision3
of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? 3

Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents4

since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4

Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? 55

Did the organization have members or stockholders? 66
Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or more7 a
members of the governing body? 7 a

Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,b
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? 7 b

Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by8
the following:

The governing body? 8 aa

Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body?b 8 b

Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the9
organization’s mailing address? If ’Yes,’ provide the names and addresses in Schedule O 9

Section B. Policies  (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes No

Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates?10a 10a

If ’Yes,’ did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates, and branches to ensure theirb
operations are consistent with the organization’s exempt purposes? 10b

Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form?11a 11a

Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.b

Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If ’No,’ go to line 13 12a12a

Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give riseb
to conflicts? 12b

Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If ’Yes,’ describe inc
Schedule O how this was done 12c

Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? 1313

Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy?14 14

Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent15
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management officiala 15a

Other officers or key employees of the organizationb 15b

If ’Yes’ to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions).

Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a16a
taxable entity during the year? 16a

If ’Yes,’ did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate itsb
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization’s exempt status with respect to such arrangements? 16b

Section C. Disclosure
List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed G17

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only) available 18
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

Other (explain in Schedule O)Own website Another’s website Upon request

Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial statements available to19
the public during the tax year.

State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization’s books and records:20 G
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Part VII Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII

Section A.  Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1 a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the 
organization’s tax year.

? List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

? List all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of ’key employee.’
? List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee) 

who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the 
organization and any related organizations.

? List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 
of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

? List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest compensated 
employees; and former such persons.

Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(C)
Position (do not check more (D) (E) (F)(A) (B) than one box, unless person 

Name and Title Average Reportable Reportable Estimated is both an officer and a 
hours compensation from compensation from amount of other director/trustee)
per the organization related organizations compensation 

week (W-2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099-MISC) from the 
(list any organization 

hours for and related 
related organizations

organiza- 
tions 

below 
dotted 
line)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

TEEA0107    02/27/14 Form 990 (2014)BAA
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Mike Strianese 1.00
Chair X X 0. 0. 0.
Saleem Cheeks 1.00
Treasurer X X 0. 0. 0.
Brian Backstrom 1.00
Secretary X X 0. 0. 0.
Latoya Taitt 1.00
Parent Representative X 0. 0. 0.
Sharon DeSilva 1.00
Member X 0. 0. 0.
Juanita Nabors 1.00
Member X 0. 0. 0.
Raimundo Archibold 1.00
Member X 0. 0. 0.
Buran Bramble 1.00
Member X 0. 0. 0.
Rex Wang 1.00
Member X 0. 0. 0.
Deborah Dhuy 40.00
Director of Business & Finance X 80,391. 0. 0.
Tiffiani Curtis 40.00
Principal X 110,742. 0. 0.
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Part VII Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(B) (C)

Position (D) (E) (F)Average (do not check more than one (A)
hours box, unless person is both an Reportable Reportable Estimated Name and title per officer and a director/trustee) compensation from compensation from amount of other 
week the organization related organizations compensation 

(list any (W-2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099-MISC) from the 
hours organization  

for and related 
related organizations
organiza
- tions 
below 
dotted 

line)

(15)

(16)

(17)

(18)

(19)

(20)

(21)

(22)

(23)

(24)

(25)

GSub-total1 b
GTotal from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section Ac
GTotal (add lines 1b and 1c)d

Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable compensation2
from the organization G

Yes No

3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee  
3on line 1a? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule J for such individual

4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from  
the organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If ’Yes’ complete Schedule J for  

4such individual

5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual  
5for services rendered to the organization? If ’Yes,’ complete Schedule J for such person

Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of  

compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.

(A) (B) (C)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation

Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than2

G$100,000 of compensation from the organization 
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Part VIII Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII  

(A) (B) (C) (D)
Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue 

exempt business excluded from tax 
function revenue under sections 
revenue 512-514

Federated campaigns1 a 1 a

Membership duesb 1 b

Fundraising eventsc 1 c

Related organizationsd 1 d

Government grants (contributions)e 1 e

All other contributions, gifts, grants, andf
similar amounts not included above 1 f

Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f:g $
GTotal. Add lines 1a-1fh

Business Code

2 a

b

c

d

e

All other program service revenuef

GTotal. Add lines 2a-2fg

Investment income (including dividends, interest and3
Gother similar amounts)

GIncome from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds .4

GRoyalties  5
(i) Real (ii) Personal

Gross rents6 a

Less: rental expenses b

Rental income or (loss)c

GNet rental income or (loss)d
(i) Securities (ii) Other

Gross amount from sales of7 a
assets other than inventory

Less: cost or other basisb
and sales expenses

Gain or (loss)c

Net gain or (loss) Gd

Gross income from fundraising events8 a
(not including .$
of contributions reported on line 1c).

See Part IV, line 18 a

Less: direct expensesb b

GNet income or (loss) from fundraising eventsc

Gross income from gaming activities.9 a
See Part IV, line 19 a

Less: direct expensesb b

GNet income or (loss) from gaming activitiesc

Gross sales of inventory, less returns10a
and allowances a

Less: cost of goods soldb b

GNet income or (loss) from sales of inventoryc
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code

11a

b

c

All other revenued

GTotal. Add lines 11a-11de

GTotal revenue. See instructions12
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546,370.

546,370.

5,432,751.

147. 0. 0. 147.

4,083. 4,083. 0. 0.
43,783.

6,023,051. 5,476,534. 0. 147.

Fundraising 900099 3,061. 3,061. 0. 0.
E-Rate Income 900099 18,304. 18,304. 0. 0.
In-Kind Donations (Goods) 900099 18,335. 18,335. 0. 0.

STUDENT ENROLLMENT 900009 5,432,751. 5,432,751. 0. 0.
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Part IX Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX

(D)(C)(A) (B)
Do not include amounts reported on lines Total expenses Fundraising Management and Program service 
6b, 7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part  VIII. expensesgeneral expensesexpenses

Grants and other assistance to domestic1
organizations and domestic governments.
See Part IV, line 21
Grants and other assistance to domestic2
individuals. See Part IV, line 22

Grants and other assistance to foreign3
organizations, foreign governments, and for- 
eign individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 

Benefits paid to or for members4
Compensation of current officers, directors,5
trustees, and key employees
Compensation not included above, to6
disqualified persons (as defined under
section 4958(f)(1)) and persons described
in section 4958(c)(3)(B)

Other salaries and wages7

Pension plan accruals and contributions8
(include section 401(k) and 403(b) 
employer contributions)

Other employee benefits9
Payroll taxes10

Fees for services (non-employees):11
Managementa
Legalb

Accountingc
Lobbyingd
Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17e

Investment management feesf
g Other. (If line 11g amt exceeds 10% of line 25, column   

(A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule O)  
Advertising and promotion12

Office expenses13

Information technology14

Royalties15

Occupancy16

Travel17

Payments of travel or entertainment18
expenses for any federal, state, or local
public officials

Conferences, conventions, and meetings19
Interest20

Payments to affiliates21

Depreciation, depletion, and amortization22

Insurance23
Other expenses. Itemize expenses not24
covered above (List miscellaneous expenses
in line 24e. If line 24e amount exceeds 10%
of line 25, column (A) amount, list line 24e
expenses on Schedule O.)

a

b

c

d

All other expensese
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e

Joint costs. Complete this line only if26
the organization reported in column (B)
joint costs from a combined educational
campaign and fundraising solicitation.

if followingCheck here G
SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)
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191,133. 38,227. 152,906. 0.

2,829,590. 2,382,928. 446,662. 0.

44,892. 36,159. 8,733. 0.
423,511. 342,529. 80,982. 0.
255,630. 204,504. 51,126. 0.

4,288. 3,454. 834. 0.
21,335. 17,223. 4,112. 0.

212,922. 171,504. 41,418. 0.
7,291. 5,873. 1,418. 0.
38,142. 32,816. 5,326. 0.
30,174. 24,305. 5,869. 0.

630,063. 542,097. 87,966. 0.

94,586. 0. 94,586. 0.

147,846. 118,277. 29,569. 0.
38,250. 32,910. 5,340. 0.

90,253. 35,963. 54,290. 0.
5,659,828. 4,519,037. 1,140,791. 0.

FOOD PROGRAM 159,024. 159,024. 0. 0.
STUDENT SERVICES 293,443. 293,443. 0. 0.
SUPPLIES/MATERIALS 118,362. 48,708. 69,654. 0.
STAFF DEVELOPMENT 29,093. 29,093. 0. 0.
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Part X Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X  

(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year

Cash ' non-interest-bearing1 1

Savings and temporary cash investments2 2

Pledges and grants receivable, net3 3

Accounts receivable, net4 4

Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors,5
trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees. Complete 
Part II of Schedule L 5
Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under 6
section 4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing 
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary employees’ 
beneficiary organizations (see instructions). Complete Part II of Schedule L 6
Notes and loans receivable, net7 7
Inventories for sale or use8 8
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges9 9

Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other basis.10a
Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a
Less: accumulated depreciationb 10b 10c
Investments ' publicly traded securities11 11
Investments ' other securities. See Part IV, line 11 1212
Investments ' program-related. See Part IV, line 1113 13
Intangible assets14 14
Other assets. See Part IV, line 1115 15

Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34)16 16
Accounts payable and accrued expenses17 17
Grants payable 1818
Deferred revenue19 19
Tax-exempt bond liabilities20 20
Escrow  or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D21 21
Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees, 22
key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified persons.  
Complete Part II of Schedule L 22
Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties23 23
Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties24 24
Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third parties,25
and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of Schedule D 25

Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 2626

and complete Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here G
lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
Unrestricted net assets27 27
Temporarily restricted net assets28 28
Permanently restricted net assets29 29

Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here G
and complete lines 30 through 34.

Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds30 30
Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund31 31

Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds32 32
Total net assets or fund balances33 33
Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances34 34

Form 990 (2014)BAA
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2,834,416. 2,033,738.

353,935. 144,515.

90,317. 65,615.

7,938,265.
403,782. 168,311. 7,534,483.

106,989.

3,446,979. 9,885,340.
501,478. 575,356.

5,980,619.

18,881. 39,522.
520,359. 6,595,497.

X

2,926,620. 3,289,843.

2,926,620. 3,289,843.
3,446,979. 9,885,340.
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Part XI Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI

Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12)1 1

Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)2 2

Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 13 3

Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (A))4 4

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments5 5
Donated services and use of facilities6 6
Investment expenses7 7
Prior period adjustments8 8

Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule O)9 9

Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 33,10
column (B)) 10

Part XII Financial Statements and Reporting

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII

Yes No

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: Cash Accrual Other1

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked ’Other,’ explain 
in Schedule O.
Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant?2 a 2 a

If ’Yes,’ check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a 
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

Separate basis Consolidated basis Both consolidated and separate basis

Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant?b 2 b

If ’Yes,’ check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate 
basis, consolidated basis, or both:

Separate basis Consolidated basis Both consolidated and separate basis

c If ’Yes’ to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2 c

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain 
in Schedule O.
As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single3 a
Audit Act and OMB Circular A-133? a3

If ’Yes,’ did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required auditb
or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits 3 b

Form 990 (2014)BAA
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6,023,051.
5,659,828.
363,223.

2,926,620.

3,289,843.

X

X

X

X

X

X

X



OMB No. 1545-0047Public Charity Status and Public Support
SCHEDULE A  

Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 2014(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
G Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

Open to Public 
 G Information about Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is Department of the Treasury Inspection

Internal Revenue Service at www.irs.gov/form990.
Name of the organization Employer identification number

Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.Part I
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 11, check only one box.)

A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).1

A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E.)2

A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).3

A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital’s4

name, city, and state:
An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in section  5
170(b)(1)(A)(iv).  (Complete Part II.)
A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).6

7 An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described  
in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi).  (Complete Part II.)
A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)8

An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33-1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts 9
from activities related to its exempt functions ' subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33-1/3% of its support from gross 
investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after 
June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part III.)
An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).10

An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one 11
or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box in 
lines 11a through 11d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 11e, 11f, and 11g.

a Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving the supported 
organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting organization. You must  
complete Part IV, Sections A and B.
Type II. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having control or b
management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported organization(s). You 
must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.
Type III functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with, its supported c
organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

Type III non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s) that is not d
functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness requirement (see 
instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that is a Type I, Type II, Type III functionally 
integrated, or Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

Enter the number of supported organizationsf
Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).g

(v)  Amount of monetary (vi)  Amount of other (ii) EIN(i) Name of supported  (iii) Type of organization (iv) Is the 
organization organization listed (described on lines 1-9  support (see instructions) support (see instructions)

above or IRC section  in your governing 
(see instructions)) document?

Yes No

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

Total

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014 Page 2

Part II Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)  
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part III. If the 
organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.)

Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year (a) 2010 (b) 2011 (c) 2012 (d) 2013 (e) 2014 (f) Total
beginning in) G

Gifts, grants, contributions, and1
membership fees received. (Do not
include any ’unusual grants.’)  

Tax revenues levied for the2
organization’s benefit and
either paid to or expended
on its behalf

The value of services or3
facilities furnished by a
governmental unit to the
organization without charge

Total. Add lines 1 through 34

The portion of total5
contributions by each person
(other than a governmental
unit or publicly supported
organization) included on line 1
that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column (f)

Public support. Subtract line 56
from line 4

Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year (a) 2010 (b) 2011 (c) 2012 (d) 2013 (e) 2014 (f) Total
beginning in) G

Amounts from line 47

Gross income from interest,8
dividends, payments received
on securities loans, rents,
royalties and income from
similar sources

Net income from unrelated9
business activities, whether or
not the business is regularly
carried on

Other income. Do not include10
gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explain in
Part VI.)

Total support. Add lines 711
through 10

Gross receipts from related activities, etc (see instructions)12 12

First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)13
organization, check this box and stop here

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
Public support percentage for 2014 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f))14 14 %

Public support percentage from 2013 Schedule A, Part II, line 14 %15 15

16a 33-1/3% support test ' 2014.  If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and the line 14 is 33-1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

b 33-1/3% support test ' 2013. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33-1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test ' 2014. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10%
or more, and if the organization meets the ’facts-and-circumstances’ test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how
the organization meets the ’facts-and-circumstances’ test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test ' 2013. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10%
or more, and if the organization meets the ’facts-and-circumstances’ test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the
organization meets the ’facts-and-circumstances’ test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions

BAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014
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Part III Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)  
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 9 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II. If the organization fails 
to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)

Section A. Public Support
(c) 2012Calendar year (or fiscal yr beginning in) G (a) 2010 (b) 2011 (d)  2013 (e) 2014 (f) Total

Gifts, grants, contributions1
and membership fees
received. (Do not include
any ’unusual grants.’)  
Gross receipts from admis-2
sions, merchandise sold or
services performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that is
related to the organization’s
tax-exempt purpose
Gross receipts from activities3
that are not an unrelated trade
or business under section 513 .
Tax revenues levied for the4
organization’s benefit and
either paid to or expended on
its behalf
The value of services or5
facilities furnished by a
governmental unit to the
organization without charge

Total. Add lines 1 through 56
Amounts included on lines 1,7 a
2, and 3 received from
disqualified persons

Amounts included on lines 2b
and 3 received from other than
disqualified persons that
exceed the greater of $5,000 or
1% of the amount on line 13
for the year

Add lines 7a and 7bc

Public support  (Subtract line8
7c from line 6.)

Section B. Total Support
(c) 2012(a) 2010 (b) 2011 (d) 2013 (e) 2014 (f) TotalCalendar year (or fiscal yr beginning in) G

Amounts from line 69
Gross income from interest, dividends, 10a
payments received on securities loans, 
rents, royalties and income from
similar sources
Unrelated business taxableb
income (less section 511
taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975
Add lines 10a and 10bc
Net income from unrelated business11
activities not included in line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly carried on
Other income.  Do not include12
gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explain in
Part VI.)

13 Total support. (Add Iines 9,
10c, 11 and 12.)
First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)14
organization, check this box and stop here

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
%Public support percentage for 2014 (line 8, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f))15 15

%Public support percentage from 2013 Schedule A, Part III, line 1516 16

Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
%Investment income percentage for 2014 (line 10c, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f))17 17

%Investment income percentage from 2013 Schedule A, Part III, line 1718 18

19a 33-1/3% support tests ' 2014. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33-1/3%, and line 17
is not more than 33-1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

b 33-1/3% support tests ' 2013. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33-1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33-1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions

TEEA0403    07/17/14 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014BAA
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Part IV Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box on line 11 of Part I. If you checked 11a of Part I, complete Sections  
A and B. If you checked 11b of Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 11c of Part I, complete 
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 11d of Part I, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Section A. All Supporting Organizations
Yes No

Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing documents?1
If ’No,’ describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by class or purpose, describe
the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain  1

Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status under section2
509(a)(1) or (2)? If ’Yes,’ explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported organization was
described in section 509(a)(1) or (2)  2

Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If ’Yes,’ answer (b)a3
and (c) below a3

Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) andb
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If ’Yes,’ describe in Part VI when and how the organization
made the determination  b3

c Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B) 
purposes? If ’Yes,’ explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use c3

Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (’foreign supported organization’)? If ’Yes’ and4 a
if you checked 11a or 11b in Part I, answer (b) and (c) below 4a

Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign supported b
organization? If ’Yes,’ describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion despite being controlled
or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations b4

Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination under c
sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If ’Yes,’ explain in Part VI what controls the organization used to ensure that
all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B) purposes  4c

Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If ’Yes,’ answer (b) 5 a
and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN numbers of the supported
organizations added, substituted, or removed, (ii) the reasons for each such action, (iii) the authority under the
organization’s organizing document authorizing such action, and (iv) how the action was accomplished (such as by

5aamendment to the organizing document)  

Type I or Type II only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already designated in theb
organization’s organizing document? 5b

Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization’s control?c c5

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to 
anyone other than (a) its supported organizations; (b) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited by one 
or more of its supported organizations; or (c) other supporting organizations that also support or benefit one or more of

6the filing organization’s supported organizations? If ’Yes,’ provide detail in Part VI

Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor7
(defined in IRC 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35-percent controlled entity with
regard to a substantial contributor? If ’Yes,’ complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990)  7

Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 7? If ’Yes,’8
complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990) 8

Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more disqualified persons 9 a
as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or (2))?
If ’Yes,’ provide detail in Part VI  9a

Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9(a)) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which theb
supporting organization had an interest? If ’Yes,’ provide detail in Part VI b9

Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9(a)) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit from,c
assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If ’Yes,’ provide detail in Part VI c9

Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of IRC 4943 because of IRC 4943(f) (regarding10a
certain Type II supporting organizations, and all Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organizations)? If ’Yes,’
answer (b) below 10a

Did the organization, have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to determineb
whether the organization had excess business holdings.) b10

TEEA0404    07/17/14 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014BAA
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Part IV Supporting Organizations (continued)
Yes No

Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?11

a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c) below, the
governing body of a supported organization? 11a

A family member of a person described in (a) above?b b11

c 11cA 35% controlled entity of a person described in (a) or (b) above? If ’Yes’ to a, b, or c, provide detail in Part VI

Section B. Type I Supporting Organizations
Yes No

Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint1
or elect at least a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees at all times during the tax year? If ’No,’ describe in
Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization’s activities.
If the organization had more than one supported organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove 
directors or trustees were allocated among the supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any,

1applied to such powers during the tax year  

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported organization(s)
that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If ’Yes,’ explain in Part VI how providing such
benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the

2supporting organization  

Section C. Type II Supporting Organizations
Yes No

1 Were a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors or trustees
of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? If ’No,’ describe in Part VI how control or management of the

1supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed the supported organization(s)

Section D. All Type III Supporting Organizations
Yes No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the 
organization’s tax year, (1) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (2) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (3) copies of the

1organization’s governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided?  

Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported 2
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If ’No,’ explain in Part VI how 
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s) 2

3 By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization’s supported organizations have a significant
voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s income or assets at
all times during the tax year? If ’Yes,’ describe in Part VI the role the organization’s supported organizations played

3in this regard

Section E. Type III Functionally-Integrated Supporting Organizations

1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions):

The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.a

The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.b

The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see instructions).c

2 Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below. Yes No

a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of the
supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If ’Yes,’ then in Part VI identify those supported
organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes, how the organization was
responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined that these activities constituted

a2substantially all of its activities  

b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization’s involvement, one or more of 
the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If ’Yes,’ explain in Part VI the reasons for 
the organization’s position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these activities but for the 

b2organization’s involvement  

Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a) and (b) below.3

Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or trustees ofa
each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI a3

Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each of itsb
supported organizations? If ’Yes,’ describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard 3b
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Part V Type III Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations
1 Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on November 20, 1970. See instructions. All

other Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

(B) Current Year(A) Prior YearSection A ' Adjusted Net Income (optional)

1 1Net short-term capital gain

2 2Recoveries of prior-year distributions

3 3Other gross income (see instructions)

4 4Add lines 1 through 3

5 5Depreciation and depletion

6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or collection of gross 
income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of property held for 

6production of income (see instructions)

7 7Other expenses (see instructions)

8 8Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6 and 7 from line 4)

(B) Current Year(A) Prior YearSection B ' Minimum Asset Amount (optional)

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see instructions for short  
tax year or assets held for part of year):

aa 1Average monthly value of securities

bb 1Average monthly cash balances

c Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets c1

d d1Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c)

e Discount claimed for blockage or other 
factors (explain in detail in Part VI):

2 2Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

3 3Subtract line 2 from line 1d

4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,
4see instructions)

5 5Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

6 6Multiply line 5 by .035

7 7Recoveries of prior-year distributions

8 8Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

Current YearSection C ' Distributable Amount

1 1Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, Column A)

2 2Enter 85% of line 1

3 3Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A)

4 4Enter greater of line 2 or line 3

5 5Income tax imposed in prior year

6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to emergency
6temporary reduction (see instructions)

7 Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally-integrated Type III supporting organization  
(see instructions).

BAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014

TEEA0406    07/18/14

HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL 20-5312786



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014 Page 7

Part V Type III Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)
Current YearSection D ' Distributions

1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported organizations,
in excess of income from activity

3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

5 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required)

6 Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions

7 Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6

8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive (provide details
in Part VI). See instructions

9 Distributable amount for 2014 from Section C, line 6

10 Line 8 amount divided by Line 9 amount

(i) (ii) (iii) 
Excess Underdistributions Distributable Section E ' Distribution Allocations (see instructions)

Distributions Pre-2014 Amount for 2014

1 Distributable amount for 2014 from Section C, line 6

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2014 (reasonable
cause required ' see instructions)

3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2014:

a

b

c

d

e From 2013

f Total of lines 3a through e

g Applied to underdistributions of prior years

h Applied to 2014 distributable amount

i Carryover from 2009 not applied (see instructions)

j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from 3f

4 Distributions for 2014 from Section D, 
line 7: $

a Applied to underdistributions of prior years

b Applied to 2014 distributable amount
Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4c

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2014, if any.
Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2 (if amount greater than
zero, see instructions)

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2014. Subtract lines 3h and 4b
from line 1 (if amount greater than zero, see instructions)

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2015. Add lines 3j and 4c

8 Breakdown of line 7:

a

b

c

d Excess from 2013

e Excess from 2014

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014BAA

TEEA0407    10/31/14



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014 Page 8

Supplemental Information.  Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Part VI
and Part III, line 12. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions).

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014BAA

TEEA0408    08/18/14

HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL 20-5312786



OMB No. 1545-0047Schedule B
(Form 990, 990-EZ, Schedule of Contributorsor 990-PF) 2014

G Attach to Form 990, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PFDepartment of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service G Information about Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, 990-PF) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990.
Name of the organization Employer identification number

Organization type (check one):

Filers of: Section:

Form 990 or 990-EZ 501(c)( ) (enter number) organization

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation

527 political organization

Form 990-PF 501(c)(3) exempt private foundation

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation

501(c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule

Note. Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See instructions.

General Rule
For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000 or more (in money or 
property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts I and II. See instructions for determining a contributor’s total contributions.

Special Rules

For an organization described in section 501(c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33-1/3% support test of the regulations 
under sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ), Part II, line 13, 16a, or 16b, and that 
received from any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) $5,000 or (2) 2% of the amount on (i) 
Form 990, Part VIII, line 1h, or (ii) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts I and II.

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, 
during the year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational 
purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts I, II, and III.

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, 
during the year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such contributions totaled more than 
$1,000. If this box is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received during the year for an exclusively religious, 
charitable, etc., purpose. Do not complete any of the parts unless the General Rule applies to this organization because 

$it received nonexclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during the year  

Caution: An organization that is not covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules does not file Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 
990-PF), but it must answer ’No’ on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, 
Part I, line 2, to certify that it does not meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF).

Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2014)BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990, 990EZ, 
or 990-PF.

TEEA0701    11/13/14

HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL 20-5312786
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X



Page ofSchedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2014) of Part 1
Name of organization Employer identification number

Part I  (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part I if additional space is needed.Contributors

(a) (b)  (c)  (d) 
Number Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total  Type of contribution

contributions

Person

Payroll

$ Noncash

(Complete Part II for  
noncash contributions.)

(a) (b)  (c)  (d) 
Number Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total  Type of contribution

contributions

Person

Payroll

$ Noncash

(Complete Part II for  
noncash contributions.)

(a) (b)  (c)  (d) 
Number Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total  Type of contribution

contributions

Person

Payroll

$ Noncash

(Complete Part II for  
noncash contributions.)

(a) (b)  (c)  (d) 
Number Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total  Type of contribution

contributions

Person

Payroll

$ Noncash

(Complete Part II for  
noncash contributions.)

(a) (b)  (c)  (d) 
Number Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total  Type of contribution

contributions

Person

Payroll

$ Noncash

(Complete Part II for  
noncash contributions.)

(a) (b)  (c)  (d) 
Number Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total  Type of contribution

contributions

Person

Payroll

$ Noncash

(Complete Part II for  
noncash contributions.)

TEEA0702    07/17/14 Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2014)BAA

1 1

HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL 20-5312786

1 Albany School District X

1 Academy Park 7,406.

Albany NY 12207

2 NYS Education Department - Child Nutrition Program X

510 West, Education Building 286,317.

Albany NY 12234

3 New York State Technology Voucher Program X

PO Box 2894 24,840.

Faribault MN 55021

4 State of New York Title Grant Income X

NYSED Grant Finance Room 510W EB 89 Washington Avenue 170,788.

Albany NY 12234



OMB No. 1545-0047Supplemental Financial StatementsSCHEDULE D 
(Form 990) G Complete if the organization answered ’Yes,’ to Form 990,  2014

Part IV, lines 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.  
G Attach to Form 990. Open to Public Department of the Treasury G Information about Schedule D (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990.Internal Revenue Service Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.  Part I
Complete if the organization answered ’Yes’ to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year1

Aggregate value of contributions to (during year)2

Aggregate value of grants from (during year)3

Aggregate value at end of year4

5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds 
Yes Noare the organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control?

6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only  
for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring  

Yes Noimpermissible private benefit?

Part II Conservation Easements.  
Complete if the organization answered ’Yes’ to Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).1

Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) Preservation of a historically important land area

Protection of natural habitat Preservation of a certified historic structure

Preservation of open space

2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the 
last day of the tax year.

Held at the End of the Tax Year

Total number of conservation easementsa 2 a

Total acreage restricted by conservation easementsb 2 b

Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a)c 2 c

d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 8/17/06, and not on a historic 
2 dstructure listed in the National Register

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the3
tax year G

4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located G

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of violations,  5
Yes Noand enforcement of the conservation easements it holds?

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year6
G

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year7
G$

8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i) 
Yes Noand section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)?

9 In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and balance sheet, and 
include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the organization’s accounting for 
conservation easements.

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets. Part III
Complete if the organization answered ’Yes’ to Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1 a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of 
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide, 
in Part XIII, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art, 
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the 
following amounts relating to these items:

$Revenue included in Form 990, Part VIII, line 1(i)

$Assets included in Form 990, Part X(ii)

2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the following 
amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:

$Revenue included in Form 990, Part VIII, line 1a

$Assets included in Form 990, Part Xb

TEEA3301    10/28/14 Schedule D (Form 990) 2014BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL 20-5312786



Schedule D (Form 990) 2014 Page 2

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)Part III
3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection 

items (check all that apply):

Public exhibition Loan or exchange programsa d

Scholarly research Otherb e

Preservation for future generationsc

4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in 
Part XIII.

5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets 
Yes Noto be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection?

Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered ’Yes’ to Form 990, Part IV, Part IV
line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1 a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian, or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included 
Yes Noon Form 990, Part X?  

If ’Yes,’ explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table:b

Amount

Beginning balancec 1 c

Additions during the year 1 dd

Distributions during the yeare 1 e

Ending balancef 1 f

Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability?2 a Yes No

If ’Yes,’ explain the arrangement in Part XIII. Check here if the explanation has been provided in Part XIIIb

Part V Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered ’Yes’ to Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back (d) Three years back (e) Four years back

Beginning of year balance1 a

Contributionsb

c Net investment earnings, gains, 
and losses

Grants or scholarshipsd

e Other expenditures for facilities 
and programs

Administrative expensesf

End of year balanceg

Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:2

%Board designated or quasi-endowment  Ga

%Permanent endowment  Gb

%Temporarily restricted endowment  Gc

The percentages in lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.

3 a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the 
Yes Noorganization by:

unrelated organizations 3a(i)(i)

related organizations(ii) 3a(ii)

If ’Yes’ to 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R?b 3b

Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.4

Part VI Land, Buildings, and Equipment. 
Complete if the organization answered ’Yes’ to Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (d) Book value(a) Cost or other basis (b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated 
(investment) basis (other) depreciation

Land1 a
Buildingsb
Leasehold improvementsc
Equipmentd
Othere

Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10c.)
Schedule D (Form 990) 2014BAA

TEEA3302    08/25/14

HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL 20-5312786

483,000. 483,000.
6,983,442. 89,531. 6,893,911.

281,754. 155,392. 126,362.
190,069. 158,859. 31,210.

7,534,483.



Schedule D (Form 990) 2014 Page 3

Part VII Investments ' Other Securities.  
Complete if the organization answered ’Yes’ to Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(b) Book value(a) Description of security or category (including name of security) (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives  

(2) Closely-held equity interests

(3) Other

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

(I)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B) line 12.) 
Investments ' Program Related. Part VIII
Complete if the organization answered ’Yes’ to Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.
(a) Description of investment type (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X,  column (B) line 13.)
Other Assets. Part IX
Complete if the organization answered ’Yes’ to Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description (b) Book value
(1)
(2)

(3)
(4)
(5)

(6)
(7)
(8)

(9)
(10)

Total.  (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 15.)

Part X Other Liabilities. 
Complete if the organization answered ’Yes’ to Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25

(a) Description of liability (b) Book value
(1) Federal income taxes
(2)
(3)

(4)
(5)
(6)

(7)
(8)
(9)

(10)

(11)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B) line 25.)
2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the organization’s liability for uncertain
tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740). Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIII

TEEA3303    08/25/14 Schedule D (Form 990) 2014BAA

HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL 20-5312786

39,522.

X

COMPENSATED ABSENCES 39,522.



Schedule D (Form 990) 2014 Page 4

Part XI Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return. 
Complete if the organization answered ’Yes’ to Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements  1 1

Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:2

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investmentsa 2 a

b Donated services and use of facilities 2 b

Recoveries of prior year grantsc 2 c

d Other (Describe in Part XIII.) 2 d

Add lines 2a through 2de 2 e

Subtract line 2e from line 13 3

Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:4

Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7ba 4 a

Other (Describe in Part XIII.)b 4 b

c Add lines 4a and 4b 4 c

55 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c.  (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 12.)

Part XII Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return. 
Complete if the organization answered ’Yes’ to Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements1 1
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:2
Donated services and use of facilitiesa 2 a
Prior year adjustmentsb 2 b

c Other losses 2 c
Other (Describe in Part XIII.)d 2 d

e Add lines 2a through 2d 2 e

Subtract line 2e from line 13 3

Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:4
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b 4 a
b Other (Describe in Part XIII.) 4 b
c 4 cAdd lines 4a and 4b

5 5Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.)

Supplemental Information.Part XIII
Provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part III, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, 
line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

Schedule D (Form 990) 2014BAA

TEEA3304    10/28/14
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6,030,011.

6,960.

6,960.
6,023,051.

6,023,051.

5,620,177.

6,960.

6,960.
5,613,217.

46,611.
46,611.

5,659,828.

Pt XII, Line 4b Loss on Disposal
The School is exempt from federal income tax under §501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code, and the School is exempt from state income tax.  
The School has been classified as a publicly-supported organization that 
is not a private foundation under §509(a) of the Code.           
	                                                           Under 
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Section 740, the tax-exempt 
status of a tax-exempt entity is an uncertain tax position, since events 
could potentially occur that jeopardize tax exempt status.  Management 
is not aware of any events that could jeopardize tax exempt status.

	Forms 990 filed by the School are subject to examination by the Internal 
Revenue Service up to three years from the extended due date of each 
return.  Forms 990 filed by the School for the fiscal years prior to 



Schedule D (Form 990) 2014 Page 5

Supplemental Information (continued)Part XIII

TEEA3305    08/25/14BAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2014

HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL 20-5312786

Pt X, Line 2
June 30, 2012 are no longer subject to examination.  There are currently 
no audits for these tax periods in progress.



OMB No. 1545-0047Schools
SCHEDULE E 

G Complete if the organization answered ’Yes’ to Form 990, (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014Part IV, line 13, or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 48. 
G Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public Department of the Treasury 

InspectionInternal Revenue Service G Information about Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form 990.
Name of the organization Employer identification number

Part I
YES NO

Does the organization have a racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students by statement in its charter, bylaws, other1
governing instrument, or in a resolution of its governing body? 1

Does the organization include a statement of its racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students in all its brochures,2
catalogues, and other written communications with the public dealing with student admissions, programs,
and scholarships? 2

Has the organization publicized its racially nondiscriminatory policy through newspaper or broadcast media during the3
period of solicitation for students, or during the registration period if it has no solicitation program, in a way that makes
the policy known to all parts of the general community it serves? If ’Yes,’ please describe. If ’No,’ please explain. If you
need more space, use Part II 3

Does the organization maintain the following?4

Records indicating the racial composition of the student body, faculty, and administrative staff?a 4 a

b Records documenting that scholarships and other financial assistance are awarded on a racially
nondiscriminatory basis? 4 b

Copies of all catalogues, brochures, announcements, and other written communications to the public dealing withc
student admissions, programs, and scholarships? 4 c

Copies of all material used by the organization or on its behalf to solicit contributions?d 4 d

If you answered ’No’ to any of the above, please explain. If you need more space, use Part II.

Does the organization discriminate by race in any way with respect to:5

Students’ rights or privileges?a 5 a

b Admissions policies? 5 b

Employment of faculty or administrative staff?c 5 c

Scholarships or other financial assistance?d 5 d

Educational policies?e 5 e

Use of facilities?f 5 f

g Athletic programs? 5 g

h Other extracurricular activities? 5 h

If you answered ’Yes’ to any of the above, please explain. If you need more space, use Part II.

6 a Does the organization receive any financial aid or assistance from a governmental agency? 6 a
b Has the organization’s right to such aid ever been revoked or suspended? 6 b

If you answered ’Yes’ to either line 6a or line 6b, explain on Part II.
Does the organization certify that it has complied with the applicable requirements of sections7
4.01 through 4.05 of Rev. Proc. 75-50, 1975-2 C.B. 587, covering racial nondiscrimination? If
’No,’ explain on Part II 7

Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2014)BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.
TEEA3401    10/13/14
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X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

THE SCHOOL’S RACIALLY NONDISCRIMINATORY POLICY IS
PUBLICIZED ON THE RADIO AND IN NEWSPAPERS.

HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL DOES NOT AWARD SCHOLARSHIPS
OR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO STUDENTS.



Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2014) Page 2

Part II Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part I, lines 3, 4d, 5h, 6b, and 7, as 
applicable. Also provide any other additional information (see instructions).

TEEA3402    08/18/14 Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2014)BAA

HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL 20-5312786

Line 6b The School receives both federal and state aid via the School 
Nutrition, Title I, and Title II grants.

Line 3 THE SCHOOL’S RACIALLY NONDISCRIMINATORY POLICY IS PUBLICIZED ON THE 
RADIO AND IN NEWSPAPERS.

Line 4d HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL DOES NOT AWARD SCHOLARSHIPS OR FINANCIAL 
ASSISTANCE TO STUDENTS.



OMB No. 1545-0047Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZSCHEDULE O 
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 2014Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.

G Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ.
Open to Public G Information about Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is Department of the Treasury InspectionInternal Revenue Service at www.irs.gov/form990.

Name of the organization Employer identification number

TEEA4901    08/18/14 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2014BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL 20-5312786

Pt VI, Line 12c MONITORED AT MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Pt VI, Line 15a DETERMINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Pt VI, Line 19 AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST
Pt VI, Line 11b BOARD REVIEWS AND APPROVES 990 BEFORE FILING
Pt VI, Line 15b DETERMINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES



OMB No. 1545-0172Depreciation and Amortization 
Form 4562 (Including Information on Listed Property) 2014 G Attach to your tax return.
Department of the Treasury Attachment G Information about Form 4562 and its separate instructions is at www.irs.gov/form4562.Internal Revenue Service (99) 179Sequence No.

Name(s) shown on return  Identifying number

Business or activity to which this form relates

Election To Expense Certain Property Under Section 179 Part I
Note: If you have any listed property, complete Part V before you complete Part I.

  1 1Maximum amount (see instructions)

  2 2Total cost of section 179 property placed in service (see instructions)

  3 3Threshold cost of section 179 property before reduction in limitation (see instructions)

  4 4Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0-
Dollar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. If married filing  5

5separately, see instructions
Description of property Cost (business use only) Elected cost6 (a) (b) (c)

  7 7Listed property. Enter the amount from line 29
  8 8Total elected cost of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), lines 6 and 7

Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8  9 9
10 10Carryover of disallowed deduction from line 13 of your 2013 Form 4562
11 11Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line 5 (see instrs)
12 12Section 179 expense deduction. Add lines 9 and 10, but do not enter more than line 11

Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2015. Add lines 9 and 10, less line 1213 13
Note: Do not use Part II or Part III below for listed property. Instead, use Part V.

Part II Special Depreciation Allowance and Other Depreciation (Do not include listed property.) (See instructions.)

Special depreciation allowance for qualified property (other than listed property) placed in service during the14
14tax year (see instructions)

15 15Property subject to section 168(f)(1) election

16 16Other depreciation (including ACRS)

Part III MACRS  Depreciation (Do not include listed property.) (See instructions.)
Section A

17 17MACRS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 2014

If you are electing to group any assets placed in service during the tax year into one or more general18
asset accounts, check here

Section B ' Assets Placed in Service During 2014 Tax Year Using the General Depreciation System
Basis for depreciation(c) Month and Depreciation(a) (b) (d) (e) (f) (g) 

(business/investment useClassification of property year placed Recovery period Convention Method deduction
in service only ' see instructions)

19 a 3-year property

b 5-year property

c 7-year property

d 10-year property

e 15-year property

f 20-year property

g 25-year property 25 yrs S/L
h Residential rental 27.5 yrs MM S/L

property 27.5 yrs MM S/L
i Nonresidential real 39 yrs MM S/L

property MM S/L
Section C ' Assets Placed in Service During 2014 Tax Year Using the Alternative Depreciation System

20 a Class life S/L
b 12-year 12 yrs S/L
c 40-year 40 yrs MM S/L

Part IV Summary (See instructions.)

21 21Listed property. Enter amount from line 28
22 Total. Add amounts from line 12, lines 14 through 17, lines 19 and 20 in column (g), and line 21. Enter here and on

22the appropriate lines of your return. Partnerships and S corporations ' see instructions
For assets shown above and placed in service during the current year, enter23

23the portion of the basis attributable to section 263A costs
FDIZ0812  06/24/14 Form 4562 (2014)BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions.
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Form 4562 (2014) Page 2

Listed Property (Include automobiles, certain other vehicles, certain aircraft, certain computers, and property used for Part V
entertainment, recreation, or amusement.)
Note: For any vehicle for which you are using the standard mileage rate or deducting lease expense, complete only 24a, 24b, 
columns (a) through (c) of Section A, all of Section B, and Section C if applicable.

Section A ' Depreciation and Other Information (Caution: See the instructions for limits for passenger automobiles.)

Do you have evidence to support the business/investment use claimed? If ’Yes,’ is the evidence written?24 a Yes No 24b Yes No

(e)  (i)  (a)  (d)  (f) (g)  (h) (c)  (b) 
Elected Basis for depreciation Type of property  Cost or Recovery Method/ Depreciation Business/  Date placed 

investment section 179 other basis period Convention deduction(business/investment  in service(list vehicles first)
use costuse only)percentage

Special depreciation allowance for qualified listed property placed in service during the tax year and25
25used more than 50% in a qualified business use (see instructions)

Property used more than 50% in a qualified business use:26

Property used 50% or less in a qualified business use:27

28 28Add amounts in column (h), lines 25 through 27. Enter here and on line 21, page 1
29 29Add amounts in column (i), line 26. Enter here and on line 7, page 1

Section B ' Information on Use of Vehicles

Complete this section for vehicles used by a sole proprietor, partner, or other ’more than 5% owner,’ or related person. If you provided vehicles 
to your employees, first answer the questions in Section C to see if you meet an exception to completing this section for those vehicles.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) 
Total business/investment miles driven30 Vehicle 1 Vehicle 2 Vehicle 3 Vehicle 4 Vehicle 5 Vehicle 6
during the year (do not include
commuting miles)

31 Total commuting miles driven during the year
Total other personal (noncommuting)32
miles driven
Total miles driven during the year. Add33
lines 30 through 32

Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No

Was the vehicle available for personal use34
during off-duty hours?

Was the vehicle used primarily by a more35
than 5% owner or related person?

Is another vehicle available for36
personal use?

Section C ' Questions for Employers Who Provide Vehicles for Use by Their Employees
Answer these questions to determine if you meet an exception to completing Section B for vehicles used by employees who are not more than 
5% owners or related persons (see instructions).

Yes No
Do you maintain a written policy statement that prohibits all personal use of vehicles, including commuting,37
by your employees?

Do you maintain a written policy statement that prohibits personal use of vehicles, except commuting, by your38
employees? See the instructions for vehicles used by corporate officers, directors, or 1% or more owners

Do you treat all use of vehicles by employees as personal use?39
Do you provide more than five vehicles to your employees, obtain information from your employees about the use of the40
vehicles, and retain the information received?

Do you meet the requirements concerning qualified automobile demonstration use? (See instructions.)41
Note: If your answer to 37, 38, 39, 40, or 41 is ’Yes,’ do not complete Section B for the covered vehicles.

Part VI Amortization
(b)  (c) (d) (f) (e) (a)  

Date amortization Amortizable Code Amortization Amortization Description of costs
begins amount section for this yearperiod or 

percentage

Amortization of costs that begins during your 2014 tax year (see instructions):42

43 43Amortization of costs that began before your 2014 tax year

Total. Add amounts in column (f). See the instructions for where to report44 44
FDIZ0812  06/24/14 Form 4562 (2014)
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IRS e-file Signature Authorization 
for an Exempt Organization OMB No. 1545-1878Form 8879-EO

, . For calendar year 2014, or fiscal year beginning , 2014, and ending

G Do not send to the IRS. Keep for your records.  2014Department of the Treasury 
G Information about Form 8879-EO and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form8879eo.Internal Revenue Service

Name of exempt organization Employer identification number

Name and title of officer

Type of Return and Return Information (Whole Dollars Only)Part I
Check the box for the return for which you are using this Form 8879-EO and enter the applicable amount, if any, from the return. If you 
check the box on line 1a, 2a, 3a, 4a, or 5a, below, and the amount on that line for the return being filed with this form was blank, then 
leave line 1b, 2b, 3b, 4b, or 5b, whichever is applicable, blank (do not enter -0-). But, if you entered -0- on the return, then enter -0- on 
the applicable line below. Do not complete more than 1 line in Part I.

Form 990 check here Total revenue, if any (Form 990, Part VIII, column (A), line 12)  1 a b 1 bG

Form 990-EZ check here Total revenue, if any (Form 990-EZ, line 9) 2 a b 2 bG

Form 1120-POL check here Total tax (Form 1120-POL, line 22) 3 a b 3 bG

Form 990-PF check here Tax based on investment income (Form 990-PF, Part VI, line 5) 4 a b 4 bG

Form 8868 check here Balance Due (Form 8868, Part I, line 3c or Part II, line 8c) 5 a b 5 bG

Part II Declaration and Signature Authorization of Officer
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I am an officer of the above organization and that I have examined a copy of the organization’s 2014 
electronic return and accompanying schedules and statements and to the best of my knowledge and belief, they are true, correct, and complete. 
I further declare that the amount in Part I above is the amount shown on the copy of the organization’s electronic return. I consent to allow my 
intermediate service provider, transmitter, or electronic return originator (ERO) to send the organization’s return to the IRS and to receive from 
the IRS (a) an acknowledgement of receipt or reason for rejection of the transmission, (b) the reason for any delay in processing the return or 
refund, and (c) the date of any refund. If applicable, I authorize the U.S. Treasury and its designated Financial Agent to initiate an electronic 
funds withdrawal (direct debit) entry to the financial institution account indicated in the tax preparation software for payment of the 
organization’s federal taxes owed on this return, and the financial institution to debit the entry to this account. To revoke a payment, I must 
contact the U.S. Treasury Financial Agent at 1-888-353-4537 no later than 2 business days prior to the payment (settlement) date. I also 
authorize the financial institutions involved in the processing of the electronic payment of taxes to receive confidential information necessary to 
answer inquiries and resolve issues related to the payment. I have selected a personal identification number (PIN) as my signature for the 
organization’s electronic return and, if applicable, the organization’s consent to electronic funds withdrawal.

Officer’s PIN: check one box only

I authorize  to enter my PIN as my signature
ERO firm name Enter five numbers, but 

do not enter all zeros

on the organization’s tax year 2014 electronically filed return. If I have indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with 
a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, I also authorize the aforementioned ERO to enter my PIN on 
the return’s disclosure consent screen.

As an officer of the organization, I will enter my PIN as my signature on the organization’s tax year 2014 electronically filed return. If I have 
indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State 
program, I will enter my PIN on the return’s disclosure consent screen.

Officer’s signature DateG G

Part III Certification and Authentication
ERO’s EFIN/PIN. Enter your six-digit electronic filing identification
number (EFIN) followed by your five-digit self-selected PIN 

do not enter all zeros

I certify that the above numeric entry is my PIN, which is my signature on the 2014 electronically filed return for the organization indicated 
above. I confirm that I am submitting this return in accordance with the requirements of Pub 4163, Modernized e-File (MeF) Information for 
Authorized IRS e-file Providers for Business Returns.

ERO’s signature DateG G

ERO Must Retain This Form ' See Instructions 
Do Not Submit This Form To the IRS Unless Requested To Do So

Form 8879-EO (2014)BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions.

TEEA7401   07/11/14

Jul 1 Jun 30 2015

HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL 20-5312786

Saleem Cheeks Treasurer

X 6,023,051.

X Cusack and Company CPAs LLC 12786

10/27/2015

14123218864

10/27/15



Schedule O (Form 990), Supplemental Information to Form 990
Form 990, Page 2, Part III, Line 1 (continued)

Briefly describe the organization’s mission:
VIRTUE, AND "HABITS OF MIND" THAT ENSURE SUCCESS BOTH WITHIN AND OUTSIDE 
THE CLASSROOM: DILIGENCE, COURAGE, RESPECT, SELF-RELIANCE, DUTY, AND RESPONSIBILITY.

HENRY JOHNSON CHARTER SCHOOL             20-5312786 1
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